

AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 
Village Hall Auditorium 


9915 – 39th Avenue 


Pleasant Prairie, WI   
March 4, 2013 


6:00 p.m. 


 


 


1. Call to Order 
 


2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 


3. Roll Call 


 
4. Minutes of Meetings – February 18, 2013 


 
5. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received 


from the public and there may be limited discussion on the information received.  However, no action will be 
taken under public comments.) 


 
6. Administrator’s Report 


 


7. Presentation by Gateway Technical College regarding its Referendum on the  
     April 2, 2013 Spring Election ballot. 


 
8. New Business 


 


A. Consider Resolution #13-05 authorizing the disposal of surplus vehicles. 
 


B. Consider Resolution #13-06 approving Amendment 1 to the Community 


Development Block Grant – Emergency Assistance Contract #08-68. 
 


C. Consent Agenda (All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will 


be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board 


member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of 
Business and considered at this point on the agenda.) 


1) Approve Letter of Credit Reduction for the Westfield Development 
2) Approve Letter of Credit Reduction for the Ashbury Creek Development. 


 


9.  Village Board Comments 
 


10. Adjournment 
 


 
The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please 
contact the Village Clerk, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 







VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 


9915 - 39th Avenue 


Pleasant Prairie, WI   


February 18, 2013 


6:00 p.m. 
 


 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, February 18, 2013.  


Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Monica 


Yuhas and Steve Kumorkiewicz.  Trustees Allen and Serpe were excused.  Also present were Michael 


Pollocoff, Village Administrator; Tom Shircel, Assistant Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community 


Development Director; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; Dave Smetana, Police Chief; Rocco Vita, Village 


Assessor; Mike Spence, Village Engineer; John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director; and Jane M. 


Romanowski, Village Clerk.  Three citizens attended the meeting. 


 


1. CALL TO ORDER 


 


2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


 


3. ROLL CALL 


 


4. MINUTES OF MEETINGS - FEBRUARY 4, 2013 
 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Motion to approve as written. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Steve, second by Monica.  Any discussion?   


 


 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTE OF THE FEBRUARY 4, 2013 


VILLAGE BOARD MEETING AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; SECONDED BY 


YUHAS; MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 


 


5. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


There are no signups tonight, Mr. President. 


 


 


 







Village Board Meeting 


February 18, 2013 


 


 


2 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Anyone wishing to speak under citizens’ comments? 


 


6. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – None.  


 


7. NEW BUSINESS 


 


A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #13-08 for 


several Zoning Map Amendments related to land within the Chiwaukee 


Prairie/Carol Beach Land Use Plan area that have been acquired by a public or 


non-profit agency for open space and/or preservation. 
 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, Ordinance #13-08 is for several zoning map 


amendments related to land within the Chiwaukee Prairie/Carol Beach area of the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie.  These are lands that have been acquired in the public’s interest by nonprofit 


agencies for open space or for preservation purposes. 


 


Specifically, the Chiwaukee Prairie Land Use Management Plan was adopted by the Town of 


Pleasant Prairie in 1985.  The plan had recommended that ultimately all of the lands that are 


identified on this slide in the green area to be acquired for open space preservation.  And once 


they were acquired they would be placed into the C-3, Natural and Scientific Area Resource 


Conservancy District.  This is the designated natural resource based preservation and protection 


district of the Village. 


 


As you know, the C-3 District is intended to preserve and enhance natural features such as scenic, 


historic and scientific areas that are associated with plan and animal communities and to prevent 


the destruction of valuable natural and scenic areas including wetlands, shorelands, navigable 


waters, prairies, meadows, sand dunes, woodlands, wildlife habitat areas and areas subject to high 


erosion.  Carol Beach and this area is the only area that has the C-3 designation.  As you know, 


the Land Use Management Plan also identifies those lands that are in the primary environmental 


corridor.  And, again, primarily most of these lands fall within that specific designation.   


 


Properties that have been acquired in 2012 have been acquired by the Wisconsin Department of 


Natural Resources as well as The Nature Conservancy of Wisconsin.  And I’m going to go 


through these for you.  There are six different properties that have been acquired.  And they are 


proposed to be rezoned into that C-3 District. 


 


The first is Tax Parcel 93-4-123-191-1295.  It’s proposed to be rezoned from the R-5, which is 


Urban Single Family Residential and C-1 District to the C-3 District.  The second is Tax Parcel 


Number 93-4-123-203-0185.  It’s proposed to be rezoned from R-5 and C-1 to C-3.  All of the 


properties that I’m going to identify for you today will remain in the LUSA District which is the 


Limited Urban Service Overlay District.  In addition, any portions of any properties that are 







Village Board Meeting 


February 18, 2013 


 


 


3 


located within the FPO which is the Floodplain Overlay District or within the Shoreland District, 


those overlays will remain on the properties. 


 


The next property is Tax Parcel 93-4-123-304-0295.  It’s proposed to be rezoned from R-5 to C-


3.  The next is Tax Parcel 93-4-123-322-0205.  It’s proposed to be rezoned from R-5 and C-1 to 


the C-3 District.  And, finally, the last two properties are 93-4-123-323-0765 which is proposed to 


be rezoned from C-1 to C-3.  And, finally, 93-4-123-323-1165 is proposed to be rezoned from the 


R-5 and C-1 to the C-3 District. 


 


This is a matter that was before the Village Plan Commission at their last meeting last week 


Monday.  A public hearing was held regarding this matter.  There were no comments from the 


audience with respect to the rezoning.  The Village staff and the Plan Commission recommend 


that the zoning text amendments which is part of Ordinance #13-08 be approved as presented. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


So moved.  We were all at the Planning Commission meeting last week.  Consequently I move to 


approve it. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Steve, second by Monica.  Any further discussion on this item?   


 


 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 


RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-08 APPROVING  SEVERAL ZONING 


MAP AMENDMENTS RELATED TO LAND WITHIN THE CHIWAUKEE PRAIRIE/CAROL 


BEACH LAND USE PLAN AREA THAT HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED BY A PUBLIC OR NON-


PROFIT AGENCY FOR OPEN SPACE AND/OR PRESERVATION; SECONDED BY YUHAS; 


MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 


 


B. Consider a Professional Engineering Services Agreement for the STH 165 Water 


Tower Painting project. 
 


John Steinbrink, Jr.: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, the water utility department is scheduled to repaint the 


165 elevated water tower.  This water tower was constructed in 1995, holds a volume of 750,000 


gallons.  A recent water tower inspection determined the water tower wet interior and 


interior/exterior are due to be repainted.  The professional services and inspection of the tower 


painting will be paid for from the water utility capital fund.   


 







Village Board Meeting 


February 18, 2013 


 


 


4 


Contract summary for the repainting of the 165 water tower which is all funded from the water 


utility estimated at $23,206 will include preparation of technical specifications and contract 


documents, project administration, a preconstruction meeting, daily inspection services for 


surface preparation of the wet interior, and critical phase inspection for interior and exterior 


services.  Dixon Engineering has provided a satisfactory reference list, project resumes and 


statement of qualifications which are attached in your packet.  I recommend that the Village enter 


an agreement with Dixon Engineering for the amount of $23,206 for these services, and I can 


answer any questions. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Any questions? 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


We went through this before. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


I’ll make a motion to approve the service agreement to Dixon. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Monica, second by Steve for adoption.  Any questions?    


 


YUHAS MOVED TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES  


AGREEMENT WITH DIXON ENGINEERING IN THE AMOUNT OF $23,206 FOR THE STH  


165 WATER TOWER PAINTING PROJECT; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION  


CARRIED 3-0. 
 


C. Consent Agenda  


1) Approve the request of David Klimisch for a Lot Line Adjustment between 


the property lines of 10010 Wilmot Road and 8491 East Ridge Drive. 


  2) Consider Operator License Applications on file. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Motion to approve. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Second. 







Village Board Meeting 


February 18, 2013 


 


 


5 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Monica, second by Steve.  Any discussion on Items 1 or 2?   


 


 YUHAS MOVED TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1 AND 2; SECONDED BY 


KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 3-0. 


 


8. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS – None. 


 


9. ADJOURNMENT 
 


 YUHAS MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; 


MOTION CARRIED 3-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:10 P.M. 







program is already established, will 
further support the industry.


o Expanded Elkhorn welding lab.
o New CNC program and lab. 


• Renovation of the Kenosha campus 
would improve access to student 
enrollment and learning support services. 
Vacated space would be redesigned and 
repurposed for an Interior Design lab 
and studio space, and a new Barbering 
program and lab.


• Renovation of the Technical Building 
on the Racine Campus would include a 
new Freshwater Technician program lab. 
Excellent growth in job potential; many 
regional water technology firms.


• All campuses would be upgraded to be 
more energy efficient. These upgrades 
include new LED lighting and replacing 
30–40-year old boilers. These energy 
efficiency upgrades could save $50,000 
to $100,000 per year.


What Are the Needs?
If approved by voters, the $49 million would 
cost each property owner $9.73 per year, per 
$100,000 valuation. With these funds, the 
college could implement its strategic plan at 
an accelerated rate and bring those benefits to 
students and the community in a timely way. 
Benefits to the community would outweigh 
the cost through expanded programs, course 
offerings and enhanced training opportunities 
for the entire community.


as students entering these career study 
areas. Currently, public safety workers are 
often forced to travel out of the area or out 
of the state to fulfill their required training 
courses. The Center would include:


o A 3-block simulated learning city 
to provide training using real life 
situations faced by emergency 
responders.


o 30,000 square foot classroom and 
tactical labs facility.


o Emergency Vehicle Operation Training 
Course (EVOC).


o Indoor Pistol/Rifle Firing Range.
o Equipment, vehicles and facility 


garage.


• Expansion and renovation of the Elkhorn 
campus to accommodate new and 
expanding program areas to meet a 
growing need for these positions in the 
community. The expansion would include:


o A new food quality lab technician 
program and lab 


o A new Veterinary Technician program 
and science lab. A Gateway-
conducted assessment of area 
veterinarians predicts a 52% increase 
in job growth.


o With an expected 25% growth over the 
next 10 years in Walworth County, the 
Hospitality industry will be in constant 
need of trained workers. Extending 
Gateway’s cosmetology and culinary 
arts programs to the Elkhorn Campus, 
where Gateway’s Hotel/Hospitality 


Why a  
Referendum Now?


Gateway Technical College continues to serve a 
critical role in the economic and educational needs 
of our community. Recently we conducted studies 
to ensure we were in alignment with community 
expectations for workforce training and advanced 
skill requirements in each of the three counties 
we serve. In response to those articulated needs, 
Gateway administration and the Board of Trustees 
introduced a plan to better serve our students and 
our communities. Keeping our region competitive 
requires preparing students and workers with the 
knowledge and skills necessary to spur job growth 
and individual success. 


What’s the Plan?
Gateway constantly adapts its programs and 
facilities to meet the needs of the community. 
As community needs exceed the available 
resources, Gateway is seeking funds to 
add, upgrade and expand through a bond 
referendum put before voters on April 2, 2013 
in the three counties served by Gateway.


What Are the Benefits  
to the Community?
• A state-of-the-art Public Safety Training 


Center would provide new and enhanced 
training opportunities to the three-county 
area for veteran law enforcement officers, 
corrections, fire and EMS workers, as well 


COMMUNITY NEEDS ARE DRIVING OUR VISION FOR THE FUTURE.


TOTAL PROPOSAL | COST: $49 million | ANNUAL IMPACT / $100,000 HOME: $9.73







Skills. 
Career.
Community.


Academic Programming  
Expansion
These projects allow for Gateway to provide 
training in facilities built for career-specific 
education, using state-of-the-art equipment 
used in the workplace today for these in-
demand careers.


Public Safety and Training Center—
central location in Gateway District
Building & Land purchase: $11,568,000
Equipment: $4,000,000
Total cost: $15,568,000


Expand and renovate Elkhorn Campus 
allowing for several new programs to 
be introduced to the campus/others, 
including automated manufacturing to be 
expanded
Expansion & Remodel: $10,090,000
Equipment: $3,500,000
Total: $13,590,000


Renovate Racine Campus including new 
Fresh Water Resources lab
Remodeling: $1,765,000
Equipment: $ 750,000
Total: $2,515,000


Remodel portion of Kenosha Campus 
Technical building including interior  
Design, Barbering labs)
Remodeling: $1,241,000
Equipment: $1,000,000
Total: $2,241,000


Increased Access/Improved 
Student Retention
These projects will provide students and 
the community with greater access to 
Gateway services. The project, similar to 
that recently completed on the Racine and 
Elkhorn campuses, will match the facility to 
the new student success model. In addition, 
a Learning Success Center which includes 
placement testing, tutoring and other 
academic support services would be created.


Expand and Renovate Kenosha Campus 
Student Services Center
Expansion & Renovation: $6,807,000
Equipment: $1,000,000
Total $7,807,000


District Projects and  
Energy Efficiency
These projects include updating aging HVAC 
equipment and lighting to save taxpayer 
dollars and create a more comfortable 
learning environment. These projects 
also remodel or add to facilities for more 
appropriate use as we respond to community 
needs.


Energy Efficiency and Infrastructure:
Cost: $5,000,000


Administration Center Expansion to bring 
administrative functions together and 
allow for more appropriate use of former 
space
Expansion: $2,029,000
Equipment: $ 250,000
Total: $2,279,000


GATEWAY TECHNICAL COLLEGE


TOTAL PROPOSAL | COST: $49 million | ANNUAL IMPACT / $100,000 HOME: $9.73







 


8600 Green Bay Road, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.925.6765   FAX 262.694.2941 


Office of the Village 


Director of Public Works 


John Steinbrink, Jr. 


 


 


 


To: Michael Pollocoff 


From: John Steinbrink Jr. 


Subject: Vehicle Disposal Approval 


Date: March 4, 2013 


I am requesting approval for the disposal of the following Village vehicles which have 
reached the end of their useful life and are currently being stored at the Prange Center: 


Vehicle 6921 – 1992 Ford Tandem Axle Dump Truck, 84,113 miles   


Vehicle 6963 – 1996 Leach Rear Loader Garbage Truck, 257,338 miles 


Vehicle 9401 -  2004 Dodge Intrepid, 111,159 miles  


 
Cost savings would be realized in the elimination of insurance, repair and/or storage 
costs. 
 
The aforementioned vehicles/equipment will be sent to auction. 
 
I recommend that the above vehicles be disposed of.  


* * * * * * * * *


 


 







 RESOLUTION #13-05 


 


 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE  


 VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 TO DISPOSE OF SURPLUS VEHICLES 


 


 


WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie Fleet Service Fund inventory includes a 1992 


Ford Tandem Axle Dump Truck (84,113 miles), a 1996 Leach Rear Loader Garbage Truck 


(257,338 miles) and a 2004 Dodge Intrepid (111,159 miles); and 


 


WHEREAS, the 1992 Ford Tandem Axle Dump Truck, the 1996 Leach Rear Loader 


Garbage Truck and the 2004 Dodge Intrepid are no longer capable of performing the services 


required by the Village because of their age, hours of operation and condition; and 


 


WHEREAS, the three vehicles are no longer needed to meet the needs of the Village. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village Administrator be 


authorized to transfer the 1992 Ford Tandem Axle Dump Truck, the 1996 Leach Rear Loader 


Garbage Truck and the 2004 Dodge Intrepid to Auction Associates to auction for the highest and 


best price.  


 


Passed and adopted this 4
th


 day of March, 2013. 


 


 


__________________________________ 


John P. Steinbrink, President 


Attest: 


 


 


_______________________________ 


Jane M. Romanowski, Clerk 


 


Posted:____________ 







RESOLUTION #13-06 


 


RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT ONE TO 


COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT – 


EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE CONTRACT CDBG-EAP #08-68 


 


 


 WHEREAS, in December, 2009, the Village applied for a Community Development 


Block Grant (CDBG) requesting funds through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 


Development to address flooding issues in six areas of the Village; and 


 


 WHEREAS, in May 2010, the Village was notified funds would be awarded to address 


flooding issues for two of the six area which included an owner-occupied residence in the 


Pleasant Homes Subdivision and in South Kenosha; and 


 


 WHEREAS, on July 19, 2010 the Village Board approved the original CDBG-


Emergency Assistance Contract #06-68 with the State of Wisconsin; and 


 


WHEREAS, Amendment 1 extending the contract term to December 31, 2012, was 


processed in October 2011 but inadvertently was not approved by the Village Board; and 


 


 WHEREAS, on December 17, 2012 the Village Board approved Amendment 2 to this 


contract extending the term of the agreement to December 31, 2013 allowing Village crews to 


use remaining funds to install additional swales in the South Kenosha area. 


 


  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Village Board of Trustees of 


the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin hereby approves Amendment 1 to 


Contract CDBG-EAP #08-68. 


 


 Passed and adopted this 4th day of March, 2013. 


 


      VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


 


      __________________________________________ 


      John P. Steinbrink, President 


 


Attest: 


 


 


__________________________________ 


Jane M. Romanowski, Clerk 


 


Posted:_______________ 



















































































































































 


9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.694.1400  FAX 262.694.4734 


 


 


AFFIDAVIT ACCOMPANYING DRAFT UNDER TALMER BANK  


AND TRUST, AS SUCCESSOR INTEREST TO FIRST BANKING CENTER 


IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. 37351600006 


DATED FEBRUARY 7, 2013 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN) 


    ) SS: 


COUNTY OF KENOSHA) 


 


Michael R. Pollocoff, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says as follows: 


 


1. I am the Village Administrator of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin (the Village). 


 


2. The Village Board of Trustees, at a meeting duly held on the 4th day of March, 2013, duly 


approved a draft upon Talmer Bank and Trust, as successor interest to First Banking Center 


Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. 37351600006 dated February 7, 2013 in the amount of US 


$14,891.38 (Fourteen Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety-one and 38/100U.S. Dollars). 


 


        Village of Pleasant Prairie 


 


 


        ________________________________ 


        Michael R. Pollocoff 


        Village Administrator 


        Village of Pleasant Prairie  


 


Subscribed and sworn to before me 


this 4th day of March, 2013. 


 


_____________________________ 


Notary Public, Kenosha Co., WI 


My commission expires __________ 


 


        ATTEST: 


 


 


        ________________________________ 


        Jane M. Romanowski 


        Village Clerk 


        Village of Pleasant Prairie  







 


9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.694.1400  FAX 262.694.4734 


 


AFFIDAVIT ACCOMPANYING DRAFT UNDER TALMER BANK  


AND TRUST, AS SUCCESSOR INTEREST TO FIRST BANKING CENTER 


IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. 37351600002 


DATED APRIL 3, 2012 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN) 


    ) SS: 


COUNTY OF KENOSHA) 


 


Michael R. Pollocoff, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says as follows: 


 


1. I am the Village Administrator of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin (the Village). 


 


2. The Village Board of Trustees, at a meeting duly held on the 4th day of March, 2013, duly 


approved a draft upon Talmer Bank and Trust, as successor interest to First Banking Center 


Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. 37351600002 dated April 3, 2012 in the amount of US 


$328,774.74 (Three Hundred Twenty-eight Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy-four and 


74/100U.S. Dollars). 


 


        Village of Pleasant Prairie 


 


 


        ________________________________ 


        Michael R. Pollocoff 


        Village Administrator 


        Village of Pleasant Prairie  


 


Subscribed and sworn to before me 


this 4th day of March, 2013. 


 


_____________________________ 


Notary Public, Kenosha Co., WI 


My commission expires __________ 


 


        ATTEST: 


 


 


        ________________________________ 


        Jane M. Romanowski 


        Village Clerk 


        Village of Pleasant Prairie  





		Agenda - March 4 2013

		Minutes - February 18 2013

		7. Gateway Referendum

		8A. Resolution 13-05 Dispose Surplus Vehicles

		Resolution 13-05 to dispose of three vehicles



		8B. Resolution 13-06 CDBG 08-68 Amendment 1 approval

		CDBG-EAP 08-68 Agreement with State

		CBDG-EAP 08-68 Amendment 1 South Kenosha

		CBDG-EAP 08-68 Amendment 2 South Kenosha



		8C. 1) Westfield Letter of Credit Reduction

		8C. 2)Ashubury Creek Letter of Credit Reduction




